1970

Marilyn Hinkins v. Al Santi : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

During the course of the above-entitled action, the defendant-appellant was held in contempt of the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, the Honorable Merrill C. Faux, presiding. This appeal is concerned only with this contempt adjudication.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

On April 9, 1970, Honorable Merrill C. Faux, Judge, State of Utah, held appellant in contempt of court.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks to have the judgment against him vacated.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On July 25, 1969, a permanent restraining order was imposed against appellant enjoining him from any further contact with Marilyn Hinkins. On April 9, 1970, after a hearing on an order to show cause, the appellant was found in contempt of court for failure to comply with the restraining order. Appellant was sentenced to fifteen days in the Salt Lake County Jail, ten days of which were suspended upon the offer of payment of \$100 attorney's fees. Appellant's committal to the county jail was stayed pending the outcome of this appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

SINCE THERE ARE NO WRITTEN FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS, OR JUDGMENT, THERE IS NO PROPER FOUNDATION TO SUPPORT A JUDGMENT OF CONTEMPT AGAINST APPELLANT AND, THEREFORE, SAID JUDGMENT MUST BE VACATED.

It is firmly established that Utah law requires written findings of fact and conclusions of law and a written

judgment reciting the facts and conclusions upon which the court based its opinion before any judgment of contempt can be upheld. *Neilson v. Dennett*, 22 Utah 2d 166, 450 P.2d 93 (1969); *Powers v. Taylor*, 14 Utah 2d 118, 378 P.2d 519 (1963); *Brown v. Cook*, 123 Utah 505, 260 P.2d 544 (1953); *Parrish v. McConkie*, 89 Utah 396, 35 P.2d 1001 (1934).

In the instant case, the appellant was held in contempt of court for violating a previous order of the court and sentenced to spend five days in jail and pay \$100 attorney's fees (Transcript, page 67) without any written findings, conclusions, or judgment of the court. The reasoning of the court supporting this judgment against appellant is evidenced only by statements in open court, and this simply does not meet the requirements of Utah law.

The case of *Powers v. Taylor*, 14 Utah 2d 118, 378 P.2d 519 (1963), is so remarkably similar to the case at hand that a similar result is inescapable if *stare decisis* has any meaning at all. In *Powers*, the same district court judge found that appellant in contempt for the same reason, imposed the same sentence, and committed the same error as in the present case.

The lower court in *Powers*, as in the instant case, had imposed an injunction upon the appellant and later held him in contempt for violating that injunction. While the judge in *Powers*, by his statements in open court, made clear the reason for the judgment of contempt, he did not make any written findings or conclu-

sions, and the recitals contained in a written "judgment" were inconsistent with his oral declarations. The Utah Supreme Court, in a unanimous opinion, vacated this judgment, stating:

Unfortunately from the standpoint of the validity of the judgment, perhaps fortunately from the viewpoint of the defendant, no written findings as such were made. In a document labeled "Judgment," there are certain recitals, which, if regarded as findings, are not in conformity with the court's idea as to the defendant's contempt expressed above.

* * *

The essence of contempt of court is the wilful disregard or disobedience of its orders [cases cited]. Inasmuch as it is punishable by the traditional criminal sanctions of fine and imprisonment, it partakes of the nature of criminal proceedings and is sometimes referred to as quasi-criminal [cases cited]. Because of this it is essential that the rights of one so accused be carefully safeguarded. He must be apprised of the nature of the accusation; afforded an opportunity to meet it; and in order to justify a finding and sentence for contempt the proof should be clear and satisfactory that the contemner was in violation or defiance of the court's order [cases cited]. *When this is done it is necessary for the court to make written findings upon the specific conduct found to be contemptuous, and draw its conclusions and enter judgment thereon* [cases cited]. As above indicated, the court made no written findings as such and the recitals contained in the "Judgment" were inconsistent with express declarations by the court as to any contempt that

may have existed [cases cited]. It is therefore evident that there is no proper foundation to support a judgment of contempt. Accordingly, it must be, and is hereby, vacated. Costs to appellant. (Emphasis added.) 14 Utah 2d at 120-121.

In this case, as in *Powers*, there are no written findings or conclusions to support the judgment of contempt.

In *Powers*, the record did contain a written judgment, but this could not support the contempt adjudication because its recitals were inconsistent with the trial court's oral statements. In this case a written judgment does not even exist.

This court in *Powers v. Taylor, supra*, has unanimously held that contempt judgments based upon such improper foundations must be vacated. *Stare decisis* now compels this result.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons it is respectfully contended that the judgment of contempt rendered against appellant be vacated.