1970

Marilyn Hinkins v. Al Santi : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

Contempt of Court for violating restraining order.

DISPOSITION IN LOWER COURT

Defendant was found to be in contempt of Court and sentenced to 15 days in the County Jail, 10 of which was suspended upon payment of \$100.00 attorney fees to Plaintiff. No written Findings, Conclusions or Judgment have been entered.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Dismissal of appeal as premature.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Plaintiff adopts statement of facts contained in Defendant's brief.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

SUPREME COURT LACKS JURISDICTION TO CONSIDER APPEAL SINCE NO FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS OR JUDGMENT HAVE BEEN ENTERED FROM WHICH AN APPEAL WILL LIE.

Defendant's brief asks that the "judgment" of contempt be vacated because the Court failed to make Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law as required by Rule 52(a), URCP, however no "judgment" #2 exists from which an appeal will lie. Rule 54(a); Rule 72 (a), URCP;

Rule 52(a), URCP, requires that the Court to "find the facts specifically" and to "state separately its conclusions of law thereon." Tardy entry of findings of fact and conclusion of law does not affect the validity of judgment based thereon. *Mower v. McCarthy*, 122 U.1, 245 P.2d 224. Rule 54(a), URCP, defines a "judgment" as "any order from which an appeal lies." Rule 72(a), URCP, permits an appeal to the Supreme Court from "all final judgments." An appeal may not be taken from an order or judgment reflected by the record or minute entries and not yet reduced to a written judgment, since minute entries do not constitute a judgment. *Robison v. Fillmore Commercial & Savings Bank*, 61 U. 398, 213 P. 790; *Lukich v. Utah Const. Co.*, 46 U. 317, 150 P. 298. A case cannot be appealed until final judgment is entered therein. *Ketchum Coal Co. v. Dist. Ct. of Carbon County*, 48 U. 342, 159 P. 737.

Plaintiff agrees with the cases cited by Defendant in his brief concerning the necessity of the Court making findings of fact, conclusions of law, and entering a written judgment in a contempt proceeding. Defendant then proceeds to the unwarranted conclusion that because he filed his notice of appeal before written findings, conclusions and judgment were entered that he should somehow escape the consequences of his willful disobedience of the restraining order by constant harrasment of the Plaintiff. Defendant's obvious remedy for delay in making written findings, conclusions and judgment is to (1) request the opposing party or the Court to prepare those instruments, or (2) to prepare such instruments and present them to the Court for approval, or (3) bring a writ of mandamus to compel entry of findings, conclusions and judgment. *Wasatch Oil Refining Co. v. Wade*, 92 U. 50, 63 P. 2d 1070. Defendant has no remedy by appeal until written findings of fact, conclusions of law and judgment have been entered. By filing the appeal Defendant deprived the District Court of jurisdiction to make and enter findings of fact, conclusions of law and a judgment in this matter. *Petersen v. Ohio Copper Co.*, 71 U 444, 266 P. 132. The appeal should accordingly be dismissed and the case remanded to the District Court so that proper findings of fact, conclusions of law and judgment may be entered. Defendant does not assert in his brief that the court erred in finding that he is guilty of contempt of court. If Defendant disagrees with the findings, conclusions and judgment which the court enters he can then appeal to this court in the usual manner.

CONCLUSIONS

Defendant's appeal should be dismissed as premature and the case should be remanded to the District Court for entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment.